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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

December 30, 2019 
To the Honorable Lance Willie 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 
Village of Eolsom, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Eolsom, Louisiana (the 
Village) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

www.dhhmcpa.com 

Members 
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An audit involves peiibrming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to 
the entitj-^'s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Folsom, Louisiana, as of June 
30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison infonnation, schedule of employer's 
share of net pension liability, schedule of employer's contributions to the pension plans, and notes to 
required supplementary information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Village of Folsom, Louisiana's basic financial statements. The other 
supplementary information listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 



This other supplementary infonnation is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In our opinion, the schedule of compensation paid to governing board and schedule of compensation, 
benefits, and other payments to agency head or chief executive officer are fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Governmental Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 30, 2019, on our consideration of the Village of Folsoni, Louisiana's internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of Folsom, Louisiana's 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Village of Folsom, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Duplantier, Hrapmann, Hogan & Maker, LLP 

New Orleans. Louisiana 



VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30.2019 

As management of the Village of Folsom, Louisiana (the Village), we offer readers of the Village's 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Village, for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. This Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is 
designed to provide an objective and easy to read analysis of the Village's financial activities based on 
currently known facts, decisions, or conditions. It is intended to provide readers with a broad overview 
of the Village's short-term and long-term activities, based on infonnation presented in the financial 
report and fiscal policies that have been adopted by the Village. Specifically, this section is designed 
to assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, provide an overview of the Village's 
financial activity, identify changes in the Village's financial position (its ability to address the next and 
subsequent year challenges), identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved 
budget) and identify individual fund issues or concerns. 

As with other sections of this financial report, the information contained within this MD&A should be 
considered only a part of a greater whole. The readers of this statement should take time to read and 
evaluate all sections of this report, including the notes to financial statements and the other Required 
Supplementary Information (RSI) that is provided in addition to this MD&A. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The management's discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Village's 
financial statements. The Village's basic financial statements consist of the following components: 

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements 
2. Fund Financial Statements 
3. Notes to Financial Statements 
4. Required Supplementary Information 
5. Other Supplementary Information 

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Government-wide financial statements are designed by Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement 34 to provide readers a concise "entity-wide" Statement of Net 
Position and Statement of Activities, seeking to give the user of the financial statements a broad 
overview of the Village's financial position and results of operations in a manner similar to a 
private-sector business. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Village's assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis 
of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. 
The difference between the assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources is reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases 
in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 
Village is improving or weakening. 



VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30.2019 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Village's net position 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as 
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing or 
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some 
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes). 

The government-wide financial statements further assist the reader in their evaluation by 
distinguishing functions of the Village into: 

Governmental Activities that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, and 

Business-Type Activities from other functions that are intended to recover all or a 
significant portion of their costs through user fees and changes. 

Government-Wide Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Village's 
financial position. The Village's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 
$4,228,050 (net position). The Village's net position is comprised of $2,239,656 from 
governmental activities and $1,988,394 from business-type activities as shown on the 
Statement of Net Position. 

Nearly one half of the Village's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings, machinery and equipment, vehicles, infrastructure, etc.), less any related debt used 
to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Village uses these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although 
the Village's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted 
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the 
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the Village's net position represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used and are classified as such. The remaining 
balance consists of unrestricted net position. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Village is able to report positive balances in all three 
categories of net position, both for the Village as a whole, as well as for its separate 
governmental and business-type activities for all funds. 



VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30.2019 

Condensed Statem^nls ofNet Position 
June 30.2019 and 2018 

Governmental Activities Bminess-Tv ne Activities 
2019 2018 2019 2018 

Current & otlier assets $ 2315,862 $ 2,239,638 $ 789,669 $ 603,057 
Capital assets 454,577 377,895 3,695.510 2,095,787 

Total assets 2,670,439 2,617,533 4,485.179 2,698,844 

Deferred outflows 174.364 205.304 14,802 25.480 

Long-temi liabilifies 528,490 583,615 555,506 831,683 
Other liabilities 12.551 37.965 1.952.256 105.288 

Total liabilities 541.041 621.580 2,507,762 936.971 

Deferred inflows 64.106 16.642 3.825 4.017 

Net position 
Net investment in 

capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

454577 
299T14 

1,4S5,965 

2239.656 

377,895 
434,032 

1,372,688 

2.184.615 

1,463,199 
93,401 

431,794 

1.988.394 

1305,639 
88,860 

388.837 

Total 
2019 201S 

3,005,531 
4.150,087 
7,155,618 

$ 2,842,695 
2.473,682 

189,166 

1,083.996 
1,964.807 
3,( 

67,931 

1,917,776 
392,515 

1,917,759 

5,316,377 

230,784 

1,415,298 
143,253 

1,558,551 

20,659 

1,683,534 
522,892 

1.761,525 

1,783336 $ 4328,050 $ 3,967,951 

Governmental Activities 

The governmental activities of the Village include General Government, Public Safety, and 
Public Works. Sales taxes, franchise taxes, occupational licenses and permits, fines, and other 
revenues fund most of these eovemmental activities. 

The following shows the Village's expenses related to those functions typically associated with 
governments. Below, we show the General Government expenses, which include salaries, 
building costs, alderman fees, depreciation, and other general administration costs. Public 
Safety expenses encompass the Police Department. Public Works expenses include salaries and 
maintenance of infrastructure. 

For die Year Ended Jme 30. 
2019 % 2018 % 

Govemn^ntal Activitkis Expenses: 
Gei^ml Government $ 335,600 41% $ 325,234 41% 
Public Safety 357,464 43% 365,977 46% 
Public Works 131,664 16% 96,267 13% 

Total Governmental Activities $ 824,728 100% $ 787,478 100% 



VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30.2019 

General revenues are those available for the Village to use to pay for the governmental 
activities described above. The following shows the Village's general revenues: 

For the Year Ended Jime 30, 
2019 % 2018 % 

General Revenues: 

Taxes $ 864,057 98% $ 792,103 81% 

Insurance Licenses 71,272 8% 69,592 7% 

Licenses aixl Permits 57,543 7% 75,408 8% 

Other General Revenues 22,407 2% 34,475 3% 

Fines and Forfeitures 18,027 2% 17,343 2% 

Investment Earning 7,167 1% 4,970 1% 

Transfers (160,704) -18% (19,855) -2% 

Total General Revenues 

and Trarsfers $ 879,769 100% $ 974,036 100% 

Business-Type Activities 

The business-type activities of the Village are those that the Village charges a fee to customers 
to help it cover all or most of certain services it provides. The Village's water, sewer, 
garbage departments are reported here. 

Water FUIKI Sewer Fund Garbage Fimd 

Operating Revenites 
Operatii^ Expemes 

Inconte (Loss) 

For the Year For the Year For the Year 

Ended June 30, Med Ji 30, Eixled Ju ne 30, 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 

$184,393 $ 199,011 $199,485 $ 179,208 $ 48,221 $ 46,264 

196,052 213,980 129,977 147,612 42,939 41,386 

$(11,659) $ (14,969) $ 69,508 $ 31,596 $ 5,282 $ 4,878 

2. Fund Financial Statements 

A hind is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Village, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village can be divided into two categories: 
governmental funds and proprietary funds. 



VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 
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Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for most of the Village's basic services reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on how 
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for 
spending. These funds are reported using modified accrual accounting, which measures cash 
and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund 
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Village's general government operations 
and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine 
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to 
finance the Village's programs. 

Because the focus of governmental fimds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the infonnation presented for governmental funds 
with similar infonnation presented for governmental activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the 
Village's near-tenn financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
governmental fimds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide 
a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities. These reconciling statements are presented on pages 15 and 17 of this report. 

The Village has three governmental funds at June 30, 2019. Infonnation is presented separately 
in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in flmd balance for the General Fund, Sales Tax Fund, and Streets 
and Drainage Fund, which are considered to be major funds. The basic governmental funds 
financial statements are presented on pages 14 through 17 of this report. 

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Funds 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Village's governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $2,203,311. In the General Fund, the nonspendable for prepaid 
amounts balance is S6,018, the assigned for public safety balance is S64,237, and the 
unassigned fund balance is $750,223. In the Sales Tax Fund, the nonspendable for prepaid 
amounts balance is $1,350 and the assigned for public works fund balance is $1,082,223. In the 
Streets and Drainage Fund, the restricted for public works fund balance is $299,114 and the 
assigned for public works balance is $146. 



VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

Change in Fund Balance of the Village's Major Funds follows: 

Sh"eete 
General Safes Tax and Drainage 
Fund Fund Fund 

Fimd Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 780,059 $ 1,001,724 $ 419,890 
Fimd Balance at June 30, 2019 820,478 1,083,573 299,260 

Iixrease (Decrease) in Fund Balance $ 40,419 $ 81,849 $ (120,630) 

Proprietary Funds 

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. The Village uses enterprise funds to account for its 
Water, Sewer, and Garbage depaitments. Proprietary funds provide the same type of 
information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. 

The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water, Sewer, 
and Garbage departments, which are considered to be major funds of the Village. The basic 
proprietary fund financial statements are presented on pages 18 through 21 of this report. 

3. Notes to Financial Statements 

The notes to the financial statements provide additional infoimation that is essential for a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 22 through 56 of this report. 

4. Required Supplementary Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain required supplementary information. Required supplementary information is presented 
on pages 57 through 66 of this report. 

5. Other Supplementary Infonnation 

The Schedule of Compensation Paid to Governing Board is presented on page 67 of this report. 
The Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head or Chief 
Executive Officer is presented on page 68 of this report. 
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Capital Assets 

The Village's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as 
of June 30, 2019, amounts to $4,150,087 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in 
capital assets includes land, building and improvements, equipment, furniture, vehicles, water 
system and equipment, and sewer system and equipment. The total increase in the Village's 
investment in capital assets was $1,676,405. This was primarily due to improvements and 
construction still in progress in the sewer fund and the relocation of a water main in the water 
hind. 

Capital Assets. Net of Accumubted Depreciation 

GovemnKntal 
Acti\Tlies 

BusiiKss-Type 
Activities Total 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 

Land $ 270.000 $ 270,000 $ 14350 $ 14,350 $ 284,350 $ 284350 

Constra:tm in Progress - - 597,717 278,448 597,717 278,448 

Building & System 21,772 28,525 - - 21,772 28,525 

Machinery & Equipment 162,805 79370 - - 162,805 79,370 

Water System & Equqmient - - 1,004,943 884370 1,004,943 884,270 

Sewer System & EqupiiKnt - - 2,078.500 918,719 2.078,500 918,719 

Totel $ 454,577 $ 377,895 $3,695,510 $ 2,095,787 $4,150,087 $ 2,473,682 

Additional information on the Village's capital assets can be found in Note 4 of this report. 

Long-Term Debt 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Village had total debt outstanding of $2,232,311. This 
amount is comprised of bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e. revenue bonds) 
and bond anticipation notes that have been issued in connection with sewer improvements 
completed during the year and that are in progress at year-end. The remaining sewer 
improvements will be completed in next fiscal year at which time the complete revenue bonds 
will be issued to replace the bond anticipation notes. 

Business-T>pe Activitks 

Revenue Bonds 

Bond Anticiiation Notes 

Total bng-teim debt 

2019 2018 

$ 536,360 $ 555,504 
1,695,951 234,644 

$2,232,311 $ 790,148 

The Village's total debt increased by $1,442,163 during the current fiscal year. Additional 
information on the Village's long-term debt can be found in Note 8 of this report. 

10 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

During the year, appropriations between the original and final amended budget increased by 
$112,500. The increase is primarily due to an increase in capital outlay expenditures and 
professional services. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget 

The Village has adopted its budget for the coming fiscal year. The most significant change in 
the budget is related to a $2,520,000 sewer improvement project that will be completed during 
the year. This project is being funded by $1,761,000 of new revenue bonds and a grant from 
USDA totaling $759,000. A small portion of that grant was earned and recorded as a revenue 
in the current fiscal year ($21,614), leaving a balance of $737,385 that will be received next 
year. Anticipated interest expense associated with the new revenue bonds for next year 
amounts to $48,120. While sales tax have consistently shown small increases each year, the 
Village budgeted these amounts to remain consistent with amounts received in the current 
fiscal year. Remaining revenues and expenditures are expected to remain relatively consistent 
with prior years. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village's finances for all 
of those with an interest in the Village's finances. Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to 
Lance Willie, Mayor, 82378 June Street, Folsom, Louisiana 70437. 

11 



VIIiAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30. 2019 

Assets: 
Cash and cash eqnh'afente 
Receivables, net 

Water, sewer, and garbage 
Sales taxes 
Other 

Internal balances 
Prepa^ expemes 

Governmental 
Activ^es 

$ 1,815,692 

66,208 
21,583 
5,897 
7,368 

Business-T3pe 
Acti\ities 

$ 575,091 

62,990 

(5,897) 
1,149 

Total 

2.390,783 

62,990 
66,208 
21,583 

8,517 
Restrkted cash and cash eqiivalents 299,114 156,336 455,450 
Capital assets, net 454,577 3,695,510 4,150,087 

Total assets 2,670,439 4,485,179 7,155,618 

Deferred Outffows of Resowces: 
Deferred outfows related to pensions 174,364 14,802 189,166 

Liabilitfes: 
Accoimte pa3^ble 10,392 155,969 166,361 
Accrued liabiltties 2,159 17,358 19,517 
Payable from restrkted assets; 

Customer deposte - 62,935 62,935 
Revenue bonds - di^ within one year - 20,043 20,043 
Bord antk^ation notes - due wifliin one year - 1,695,951 1,695,951 

Revenue bonds - di^ in more tten one year - 516,317 516,317 
Net pension liability - due in iTK>re dian one year 528,490 39,189 567,679 

Total liabilities 541,041 2,507,762 3,048,803 

Deferred Inlbws of Resources: 
Deferred inflows rekted to pemions 64,106 3,825 67,931 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 454,577 1,463,199 1,917,776 
Restrkted: 

Efebt servke - 93,401 93,401 
Publk works 299,114 - 299,114 

Unresttkted 1,485,965 431,794 1,917,759 
Total net position $ 2,239,656 $ 1,988,394 $ 4,228,050 

See acconpan5dng notes to flie financkl statements. 

12 



VTT.T AGF. OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF ACTT\TI1ES 

FORTHEYEARENDEDJUNE30, 2019 

Program Net (Ei^ense) Revenue and 

Revenues Change in Net Position 

Charges for Capital GovernnentaJ Business-Type 

Fuiictioii/ProgianB Bqtenses Services Qants Activities •Activities Total 

Governmental activities: 

General government $ 335,600 $ - $ S (335,6(XI) S S (335,600) 

Public safety' 357.464 - (357,464) - (357,464) 

Public works 13L664 - (131,664) - (131,664) 

Total governmental activities 824,728 (824,728) _ (824.728) 

aisiness-type activities: 

Water 196.052 184,393 1,671 - (9,988) (9,988) 

Sewer 129,977 199,485 21,615 - 91,123 91.123 

Garbage 42,939 48,221 - 5,282 5,282 

Interest on long-tenndebt 42.877 - - (42,877) (42.877) 

Total business-type activities 411,845 432.099 23.286 _ 43,540 43,540 

Total $ T236,573 $ 432,099 $ 23,286 (824,728) 43,540 (781.188) 

General revenues: 

Tajes 864,057 - 864,057 

Insurance licenses 71,272 - 71.272 

Licenses and permits 57,543 - 57,543 

Other general revenues 22,407 - 22,407 

Fines and forfeitures 18,027 - 18.027 

Investment earnings 7,167 814 7,981 

Transfers (160,704) 160,704 -

Total general revenues and transfers 879,769 161,518 1,041,287 

Change in net position 55,041 205,058 260.099 

Net position, beginning ofyear 2.184,615 1,783,336 3,967,951 

Net position, end ofyear S 2,239,656 s 1,988,394 S 4,228,050 

See accoiipanying notes to tl^ finai Kial statements. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

Sales Streets Total 

GeiKral Tax & Drainage Governmental 
Fund Fund Fund Finds 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equh^lenls $ 790,597 S 1,025,095 $ S 1,815,692 
Restricted cash and cash equivafenis - - 299,114 299,114 

Receivables, net: 
Sales - 66,208 - 66,208 

Other 21,583 - - 21,583 
Due from odier ftmds 13,876 - 146 14,022 
Prepaid ejq^enses 6,018 1,350 - 7,368 

Total assets 832,074 1,092,653 299,260 2,223,987 

Liabiltties and Furd BakiKes: 

Labilrties: 
Accounts payable 9,437 955 - 10,392 
Accrued liabilities 2,159 - - 2,159 

Due to other fimds - 8,125 - 8,125 

Total IkbiMes 11,596 9,080 _ 20,676 

Fund balances: 
Restricted for public works - - 299,114 299,114 

Nonsperaiable for prepaid amounts 6,018 1,350 - 7,368 
Assigned for: 

Public works - 1,082,223 146 1,082,369 
Public safety 64,237 - - 64,237 

Unassigied 750,223 - - 750,223 

Total frind balances 820,478 1,083,573 299,260 2,203,311 

Total liabiltties and fond balances $ 832,074 S 1,092,653 $ 299,260 S 2,223,987 

See acconpan^ing notes to the finaiKal sfatenKnts. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LGinSIANA 

RFCONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2019 

Totalfimdbalances forgovemnienlalfimds alJime 30, 2019 S 2,203,311 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net 
Position is different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds 454,577 

Deferred outfbws of resources for retirement systems are not payable from 
current expendable resources and, therefore, are not reported in the fimds 174,364 

Long-tennHabiities at June 30, 2019: 
Net pension Habilies (528,490) 

Deterred inflows of resources for retirement systems are not payabte from 
current expendable resources and, therefore, are not reported in the fimds (64,106) 

Total net position of governmental activitKS at June 30, 2019 S 2,239,656 

See acconpanying notes to the financial statements. 
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VniAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Sales taxes 
Franchise taxes 
Other 

Insurance licenses 
Licenses and permits 
Grants 
Other revenues 
Fines and forfeflures 
Interest income 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Cnrrent: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 

Capita! outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other fuiancing soiuces (uses): 
Transfer in 
Transfer out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fimd balances 

Fund balance, begimiing of year 

Fimd balance, end of year 

General 
Fimd 

58J38 
6,989 

71,272 
57,543 

4,304 
18,027 
1.363 

218,236 

293,683 
335,995 

65,651 

695.329 

(477,093) 

522,512 
(5,000) 

517,512 

40,419 

780,059 

820.478 

Sales 
Tax 

Fimd 

798.330 

4.566 

5.456 

808.620 

104.966 

104.966 

703,654 

(621,805) 

(621,805) 

81,849 

1,001,724 

1.083.573 

Streets 
& Drainage 

Fimd 

347 

347 

199 

24,265 
40.102 

64.566 

(64,219) 

98,727 
(155,138) 

(56,411) 

(120,630) 

419.890 

299.260 

Total 
Govermnental 

Fimds 

798,330 
58,738 
6,989 

71,272 
57,543 
4,566 
4,572 

18,027 
7,166 

1.027.203 

293,882 
335,995 
129,231 
105,753 

864.861 

162,342 

621,239 
(781,943) 

(160,704) 

1,638 

2.201.673 

2.203.311 

See acconpairying notes to the firrnieial statements. 



VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF RE\™UES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVHIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Net change in fimd balances - total governmental Lmds $ 1,638 

Anwittits reported for govemnKntal activities in the Statement of Activities 
are different because: 

GovemnKnfol fonds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, 
in the Staten^nt of Activities, the cost of those assets is aBocated over 
the assets' estimated useful lives throu^ depreciation expense. This B die 
an»irat by which capital outkys charged in the ciurent period exceeded 
depreciation expense. 76,682 

Pension Qxper&Q, which is the change in the net pension liability adjusted 
for changes in deferred outffows and inflows of resources rekted to pensions, 

is reported in die StatenKnt of Activities. (36,550) 

The ViDage's proportionate share ofnon-en^ibyer contnhutiorB to the 
pension pkiB are reported in die Staten^nt of ActivMes. 13,271 

Change in ret position of govemnKntal activities $ 55,041 

See acconpan^ing notes to the tinanckl statenKnte. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

JUNE 30.2019 

Water Sewer Garbage Total 
Assets: 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 405,743 S 163,376 $ 5,972 $ 575,091 
Receh'ables 

Water, sewer, and garbage, net 16,482 42,063 4,445 62,990 
Due from other funds - 13.747 4,631 18.378 
Prepaid expenses 699 450 - 1,149 

Total current assets 422,924 219,636 15,048 657,608 

Non-current assets: 
Restricted cash and cash equwalents 112,799 43,537 - 156,336 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,019,293 2,676,217 - 3,695,510 

Total non-current assets 1,132,092 2,719,754 3,851,846 

Total assets 1,555,016 2,939,390 15,048 4,509,454 

Deferred outflows of resources: 
Deferred outflows related to pensions 11.277 3,525 - 14,802 

Liabilities: 
Current liabiltties: 

Accounts payable 3,222 149,172 3,575 155,969 
Accrued liabilities 440 16,918 - 17,358 
Due to other funds 22,969 1,306 - 24,275 
Bond anticipation notes - 1,695,951 - 1,695,951 
Payable from restricted assets: 

Revenue bonds 14,881 5,162 - 20,043 
Customer deposits 40,055 22,880 - 62,935 

T otal current liabilttites 81,567 1,891,389 3,575 1,976,531 

Non-current liabilities: 
Revenue bonds 331,150 185,167 - 516,317 
Net pension liabilities 29.858 9,331 - 39,189 

Total non-current liabilities 361,008 194,498 555,506 

T otal liabilities 442,575 2,085,887 3,575 2,532,037 

Deferred inflows of resources: 
Deferred inflows related to pensions 2,914 911 - 3,825 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 673,262 789,937 - 1,463,199 
Restricted for revenue bonds 72.744 20,657 - 93.401 
Utuestricted 374,798 45,523 11,473 431,794 

Total net position $1,120,804 S 856,117 11,473 1,988,394 

See accorrpanying notes to the linancmlstaterrKnts. 



VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
STATFMFNT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 

IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Water Sewer Garbage Total 
Operating Revenues: 

Service fees $ 172,121 $ 199,485 $ 48,221 $ 419,827 
Delinquent fees 12,272 - - 12,272 

Total operating revenues 184,393 199,485 48,221 432,099 

Operating Expenses: 
Salaries and fringe benefits 66,228 2,486 - 68,714 
Depreciation 62,065 54,950 - 117,015 
Garbage colfection - - 42,939 42.939 
General and administrative 52,324 55,994 - 108,318 
Utilities 9,515 11.431 - 20,946 
Repairs and naintenance 5,920 5,116 - 11,036 

Total operating expenses 196,052 129,977 42,939 368,968 

Operating incon^ (toss) (11,659) 69,508 5,282 63,131 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses): 
Capital ^ants 1,671 21,615 - 23,286 
Interest incoiiK 613 198 3 814 
Other income - - - -

Interest and fiscal charges (16,556) (26,321) - (42,877) 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (14,272) (4,508) 3 (18,777) 

Income (loss) before transfers (25,931) 65,000 5,285 44,354 

Transfers 175,826 (14,436) (686) 160,704 

Chan^ in net position 149,895 50,564 4,599 205,058 

Net position, beginning ofyear 970,909 805,553 6,874 1,783,336 

Net position, end ofyear $1,120,804 $ 856,117 $ 11,473 $ 1,988,394 

See acconpanying notes to the financial statenmts. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM. LOUISIANA 
STATEVIENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR YE.AR ENDED .RJNE 30, 2019 

Water Sewer Garbage Total 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACHV^ITIES: 

Rece^ts from customers and laers S 176,925 $ 186218 3 ; 51,601 S 415,044 
Payments to sq^pfers (68,280) (74,919) (39,364) (182,563) 
Pa>'ments to en^loyees (66,487) (18263) - (84,750) 

Net cash pro\'ided by operating activitKS 42,158 93.336 12,237 147,731 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVTHES: 
Transfers 175,826 (14,436) (686) 160,704 
Proceeds from (repkcement of) interfimd borrowings 8,658 (5,517) (4,631) (1,490) 

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital 
fmancir^ activities 184,484 (19,953) (5317) 159214 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Capital grants received 1,671 21,615 - 23,286 
Piffchase of capflai assets (155,139) (1,429,653) - (1,584,792) 
Principal paid on capital debt (14207) (4237) - (19,144) 
Interest paH on capital debt (16,556) (10,545) - (27,101) 
Proceecfe from issuance of bond antkpation notes - 1,46 U07 - 1,461,307 

Net cash provided (used) by capitol and related 
financing activitfes (184,231) 37,787 - (146,444) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Interest received 613 198 3 814 

Net cash provided by investing activities 613 198 3 814 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 43,024 111,368 6,923 161315 

Cash and cash eqiuvalents, teginning of year 475218 95.545 (951) 570,112 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR S 518,542 $ 206,913 1 ; 5,972 S 731,427 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RECONCILIATION: 
Cash and cash equivalents (imrestricted) s 405,743 $ 163376 3 ̂ 5,972 S 575,091 
Restricted cash and cash equivaknts 112,799 43,537 - 156,336 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR s 518,542 $ 206,913 3 ; 5,972 S 731,427 

See acconparwing notes to the financal staten^nts. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR YEAR ENDED .TUNE 30,2019 

See acconpan^ing notes to the linancial statements. 

Water Sewer Garba^ Total 
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 

provided by operating actmties; 
Operatmg incon^ (loss) S (11,659) S 69,508 $ 5,282 $ 63,131 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciatbn 62,065 54,950 - 117,015 
PeiKion expeiKC 8,130 (13,903) - (5,773) 
Pemion contrinttions made subseqi^nt to 

measitt^ment date (3,972) (1,241) - (5,213) 
Changes m assets and Eabilfes: 

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivabfe (12,546) (13,492) 3,380 (22,658) 
Decrease (increase) in prepaid e^enses (699) (450) - (1,149) 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (521) (2,378) 3,575 676 
Increase (decrease) in accn^d liabilities 440 (183) - 257 
Decrease (increase) in ciaton^r deposib 920 525 - 1,445 

Net cash provided by operating actmties S 42,158 S 93,336 $ 12,237 $147,731 

Supplen^ntary disclosm^e of cash flow infomBtion 
Interest paid S 16,805 S 10,544 $ $ 27,349 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30.2019 

Introduction 

The Village of Folsom, Louisiana (the Village), was incorporated in 1915, under the provisions of the 
Lawrason Act, Louisiana Revised Statute (LRS) 33:321. The Village operates under a Mayor-Board of 
Aldermen form of government. The Village provides police protection, maintenance of streets, 
economic development, water, sewer, and garbage services. The Police Chief is appointed by the 
Mayor. The Village's Board of Aldermen approves the annual budget for the Police Department and 
dedicates portions of the Village's revenues to fund this department. The Police Department is not 
legally separate, and, therefore, is a function of the primary government and its operations are reported 
as a part of the Village's General Fund. 

The accounting and reporting policies of the Village conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is 
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles. Such accounting and repotting procedures also confonn to the requirements of guides set 
forth in Louisimia Audit Guide, and to the industry audit and accounting guide. State and Local 
Governments. 

I) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Financial Reporting Entitv 

Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Standards (GASB Codification) established criteria for determining the governmental reporting 
entity and component units that should be included with the reporting entity. For financial 
reporting purposes, in conformance with GASB Codification Section 2100, Codification of 
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, the Village includes all funds 
which are controlled by or dependent on the Village, which was determined on the basis of 
oversight responsibility, including accountability for fiscal and budget matters, designation, 
and management or governing authority, and authority to issue debt. Based on these criteria, 
the Village has determined that there are no component units that are part of the reporting 
entity. 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Village. 
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Governmental activities, which noimally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant 
extent on fees and charges for support. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30.2019 

1 • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Dif^ect expeyises are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported 
instead as general revenues. 

The Village adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund 
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This statement provides clearer 
definitions for governmental funds. This statement also establishes fund balance classifications 
that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to 
obseive constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in the governmental funds. 

The Village segregates transactions related to certain fiinctions or activities in separate funds in 
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Separate statements 
are presented for governmental and proprietary acthdties. These statements present each major 
fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements; all non-major funds are aggregated 
and presented in a single column. 

Governmental funds are those funds through which most governmental functions typically are 
financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses, and balances 
of current financial resources. The Village has presented the following major governmental 
funds: 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Village. This fund is used to account 
for all financial transactions and resources, except those that are required to be accounted 
for in another fund. Revenues are derived primarily from transfers from the Sales Tax 
Fund, licenses and permits, local taxes, fines and forfeitures, charges for services, and 
interest income. Expenditures of the General Fund include both general government and 
public safety. 

Sales Tax Fund 

The Sales Tax Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other 
than capital projects) for which substantial amounts are legally restricted to expenditures 
for specific purposes. The Village's Sales Tax Fund accounts for the collection of three 
sales tax issues described as follows: 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30.2019 

1 • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Govemment-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Sales Tax Fund (Continued) 

a) 1982 1% Sales Tax - Proceeds are undesignated as to use. 
b) 1986 1% Sales Tax — Proceeds are undesignated as to use. 
c) 1995 V2 % Sales Tax — Dedicated to providing police protection to the Village. 

Streets and Drainage Fund 

The Streets and Drainage Fund is used to account for activity associated with an 
intergovernmental agreement entered into by the Village and St. Tammany Parish, 
Louisiana. This agreement restricts certain sales tax revenues collected within a defined 
growth management area for public works within that area. 

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources mea.surement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. The accounting objectives are determination of net income, 
financial position, and cash flow. All assets and liabilities are included on the Statement of Net 
Position. The Village has presented the following major proprietary funds: 

Water Fund 

The water flind is used to account for the water services provided to the residents and 
businesses of the Village. 

Sewer Fund 

The sewer fund is used to account for the sewer services provided to the residents and 
businesses of the Village. 

Garbage Fund 

The garbage fund is used to account for the garbage services provided to the residents and 
businesses of the Village. 

Proprietary fimds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. 
Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of personnel and contractual 
services, supplies, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting 
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30.2019 

1 • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting., and Financial Statement Presentation 

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when 
revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial 
statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of 
the measurement focus applied. 

The government-wide financial statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds 
are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been met. 

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter, to pay liabilities of the 
current period. For this purpose, the Village considered revenues to be available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt servdce 
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and 
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are 
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the 
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available 
only when cash is received by the Village. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with, or contradict guidance of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following 
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, 
subject to this same limitation. The Village has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector 
guidance. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes and 
other charges between the Village's enterprise operations. Elimination of these charges would 
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30.2019 

1 • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting., and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued) 

Amounts reported as program revenues include; 1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital 
grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are 
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues 
include all taxes. 

A deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net position that applies to a 
future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenditure/expense) until 
that future time. 

A deferred inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a fliture 
period and therefore will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that future 
time. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

All proposed budgets must be completed and submitted to the Village Council no later than 
fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures and the means for financing them. 

The Village adopted a budget on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles for the following funds: General Fund, Sales Tax Fund, and the Streets and Drainage 
Fund. At the end of the fiscal year, unexpended appropriations of these funds automatically 
lapse. The Village follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data: 

1. The Mayor, Board of Aldermen, Village Clerk, and other advisory personnel assemble 
the necessary financial information. The Mayor submits the information for review to 
the Board of Aldermen at least 45 days prior to July of the following year. 

2. A public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 

3. The budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance by the Board of 
Aldermen. 

4. Any revisions that alter the total revenues and/or expenditures budgeted for any 
department, office, agency, or fund must be approved by the Board of Aldermen. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30.2019 

1 • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Deposits and Cash Equivalents 

For reporting purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes amounts in savings, demand 
deposits, time deposits, and certificates of deposit. Under state law, the Village may deposit 
funds with a fiscal agent bank organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of 
any other state in the union, or the laws of the United States. Further, the Village may invest in 
time certificates of deposit of state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana, national banks 
having their principal office in the State of Louisiana, in savings accounts or shares of savings 
and loan associations and savings banks, and in share accounts and share certificate accounts of 
federally or state chartered credit unions. 

Under state law, these deposits must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of 
securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. State law R.S. 39:1225 provides that the amount of 
security shall at all times be equal to 100% of the amount on deposit to the credit of each 
depositing authority, except that portion of the deposits insured by any governmental agency 
insuring bank deposits, which is organized under the laws of the United States. 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, all highly-liquid investments (including 
negotiable CDs and restricted cash and cash equivalents) and deposits (including negotiable 
CDs and restricted cash and cash equivalents) with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. 

In addition, local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in Louisiana Asset 
Management Pool (LAMP), a non-profit corporation formed by the State Treasurer and 
organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, which operates a local government 
investment pool. LAMP invests in obligations issued by the U.S. Government, its agencies, 
and instrumentalities. LAMP is subject to regulatory oversight of the State Treasurer and its 
Board of Directors. Audited financial statements are available from LAMP. 

Accounts Receivable 

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, when appropriate, are reduced by the 
estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. Uncollectible accounts receivable are 
recognized as bad debts through the establishment of an allowance account at the time 
information becomes available that would indicate the uncollectibility of the particular 
receivable. 

Outstanding balances between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "due to/due from other funds." Any 
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities 
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "Internal Balances." 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30.2019 

1 • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Accounts Receivable (Continued) 

Uncollectible amounts due for customers' utility receivables are recognized as bad debts 
through the establishment of an allowance account at the time information becomes available, 
which would indicate the uncollectibility of the particular receivable. The allowance is $5,042 
for the Water Fund, $3,605 for the Sewer Fund, and $1,720 for Garbage Fund at June 30, 2019. 

Prepaid Items 

Prepaid items are recorded in the year the expenditures are accrued using the consumption 
method. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. 
Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated cost if historical costs are not 
available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at 
the date of donation. The Village maintains a threshold level of $2,500 or more for capitalizing 
assets. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend an asset's life are not capitalized. 

Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures in the fund financial statements, and they are 
recorded as assets in the government-wide financial statements, to the extent the Village's 
capitalization threshold is met. 

No salvage value is taken into consideration for depreciation purposes. All capital assets, other 
than land, are depreciated for financial reporting purposes using the straight-line method over 
the following useful lives of the asset; 

Description Estinmted Life 

Land InprovenKnts 20 Years 
BuMin^ and BuMing Inprovemente 15-40 Years 
Water and Sewer Systens 40 Years 
Fiffnitiffe aryJ Fixtiffes 7 Years 
Vehicles 5 Years 
Equipirent 5-20 Years 
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1 • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, debt principal payments of both governmental 
and business-type activities are reported as decreases in the balance of the liability on the 
Statement of Net Position. In the fund financial statements, however, debt principal payments 
of governmental funds are recognized as expenditures when paid. 

Noncurrent liabilities include estimated amounts for net pension liabilities that will not be paid 
within the next fiscal year. 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, information about the 
fiduciaty net position of the Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) and Municipal 
Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) and additions to/deductions from MERS and 
MPERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
MERS and MPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

Fund Equity 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components: 

1. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balance of any 
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of 
those assets. 

2. Restricted - Net position with constraints placed on the use either by: 

a. external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of 
other governments, or 

b. law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

3. Unrestricted - All other net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted" or 
"net investment in capital assets." 
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1 • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Fund Equity (Continued) 

Fund Financial Staremenrs 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows: 

1. Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in spendable 
form or because of legal or contractual restraints. 

2. Restricted — Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the 
Village Charter, state or federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or 
creditors. 

i. Assigned - Amounts that are designated by the Mayor for a particular purpose but are 
not spendable until a budget ordinance is passed or there is a majority vote approval by 
the governing Board. 

4. Unassigned - All amounts not included in other spendable classifications. 

The Village considers restricted flmd balances to be spent for governmental expenditures first 
when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available. The Village also considers 
assigned fund balances to be spent first when other unrestricted fund balance classifications are 
available for use. The Village does not have a formal minimum fund balance policy. 

Interfund Transactions 

Permanent re-allocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity is classified as 
interfund transfers. For the purposes of the Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers 
between individual governmental funds have been eliminated. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Compliance with Debt Covenants 

As of June 30, 2019, the Village was in compliance with the required funding of the Water 
Utility Bond Reserve Fund, the Water Utility Depreciation & Contingency Fund, and the 
Sewer Utility Bond Reserve Fund. 
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1 • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Adoption of New Accounting Principles 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the following statement was implemented: GASB Statement 
No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings. This statement 
changed the information that is disclosed in notes related to debt, including direct borrowings 
and direct placements. 

2- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, interest bearing demand deposits, and money 
market accounts. Under state law, the Village may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest 
bearing demand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state banks organized 
under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal offices in Louisiana. At year-
end, the carrying amount of the Village's bank deposits was $2,606,589 (including $455,450 of 
restricted cash). 

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
Village's deposits may not be returned to it. The Village does not have a deposit policy for 
custodial credit risk. Under state law, deposits must be secured by federal deposit insurance or 
the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged 
securities, plus the federal deposit insurance, must at all times equal the amount on deposit 
with the fiscal agent. The custodial bank must advertise and sell the pledged securities within 
10 days of being notified that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

At June 30, 2019, the Village had $2,628,159 in interest and non-interest bearing demand 
deposits. These deposits are fully secured from risk by federal deposit insurance and 
$2,971,406 of pledged securities held by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent 
bank. 

At June 30, 2019, cash equivalents of $239,644 consisted of local government pooled 
investments maintained by Louisiana Asset Management Pool, Inc. (LAMP). LAMP is 
administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of 
Louisiana. Only local government entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have an 
investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe 
environment for the placement of public funds in short-term, high quality investments. The 
LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local governments in 
Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance with LA R.S. 33:2955. 

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure^ requires disclosure of credit 
risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign currency 
risk for all public entity investments. LAMP is an investment pool that, to the extent practical, 
invests in a manner consistent with GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment 
Pools and Pool Participants. The following facts are relevant for investment pools: 
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2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 

• Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 

• Custodial credit risk: LAMP participants' investments in the pool are evidenced by shares 
of the pool. Investments in pools should be disclosed, but not categorized because they are 
not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book-entry form. The public entity's 
investment is with the pool, not the securities that make up the pool; therefore, no 
disclosure is required. 

• Concentration of credit risk: Pooled investments are excluded from the 5 percent disclosure 
requirement. 

• Interest rate risk: LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate 
access to their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk disclosure using 
the weighted average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP assets is restricted to 
not more than 90 days, and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days 
or 762 days for U.S. Government floating/variable rate investments. The WAM (to reset) 
and the WAM (to final) for LAMP'S total investments was 33 days and 99 days, 
respectively, at June 30, 2019. 

• Foreign currency risk: Not applicable. 

The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value. The fair value is determined on a weekly 
basis by LAMP and the value of the position in the external investment pool is the same as the 
net asset value of the pool shares. 

LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of 
directors. LAMP is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact LAMP administrative office at 800-249-5267. 

3. UTILITY ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

At June 30, 2019, the Village has the following utility receivable and corresponding allowance 
for doubtful accounts in its proprietary funds: 

Water Sewer Garbage 
Fund Fimd Fund 

Receivable $ 21,524 $ 45,668 $ 6,165 
Alfowance forDoubtMAccoimts (5,042) (3,605) (1,720) 

net $ 16,482 $ 42,063 $ 4,445 
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CAPITAL ASSETS 

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2019: 

Balance 
Jufy 1. 
2018 Additwns Detelions Construction 

June 30. 
2019 

Governmental Activiies 

Capital asssets not being deprechted: 
Land $ 270,000 $ $ $ $ 270,000 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

Buildings and improvements 

Equpnent, fiimitiire. and vehicles 

223T90 
380,347 105,753 

- - 223,290 
486,1(W 

Total capital assets being depreciated 603,637 105.753 - - 709,390 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
RiiilHings and improvements 
Equ^ment, furniture, and vehicles 

(194,765) 
(300,977) 

(6,753) 
(22,318) 

- - (201,518) 
(323,295) 

Total accumukKd deprechtion (495,742) (29,071) - - (524,813) 

Total capital assets being depreciated 107,895 76,682 . . 184,577 

Total Governmental Activities $ 377,895 $ 76,682 $ $ $ 454,577 

Balance 
Julyl, 

2018 Additwns Detetions 
Completed 

Construction 

Baknce 
June 30, 

2019 
Business-Twe Activities 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 

Constructm in progress - water 
Construction m progress - sewer 

$ 14350 

27,599 
250,849 

$ 

159,539 
1,561,599 

$ 

(4,400) 

$ 
(182,738) 

(1,214,731) 

$ 14,350 

597,717 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 292,798 1,721,138 (4,400) (1,397,469) 612,067 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Water system and equ^ment 
Sewer system ami equipment 

2,015,887 

1.457,829 
- - 182,738 

1,214,731 

2,198,625 
2.672,5^) 

Total capial asssets being depreciated 3,473,716 - - 1,397,469 4,871,185 

Less accumulated deprecation for: 

Water system and equ^ment 

Sewer system and equipment 

(1,131,617) 
(539,110) 

(62.065) 
(54,950) 

- - (1,193,682) 
(594,060) 

Total accumulated depreciation (1.670,727) (117,015) - - (1.787,742) 

Total capital assets being depreciated net 1,802,989 (117,015) . 1,397,469 3,083,443 

Total Business-Type ActivitES $ 2,095,787 $ 1.604,123 $ (4,400) $ $ 3,695,510 
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CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Depreciation was charged to programs as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
General govermiBnt $ 8,586 
PubHc safely 8,063 

PiibHc works 12,422 

Total $ 29,071 

Business-Type Activities: 
Water $ 62,065 
Sewer 54,950 

Total $ 117,015 

5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS 

Village employees are eligible to be members of one of the following retirement systems: 
Munieipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana or Municipal Police Employees' 
Retirement System. In addition to employee payroll deductions. Village funds are remitted to 
the retirement systems and are recorded as expenditures. 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System 

Plan Description 

The Village provides pension benefits for substantially all full-time employees through the 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, Plan B. The retirement system is a 
cost-sharing, multiple-employer, statewide retirement system which is administered and 
controlled by a separate board of trustees. It provides retirement, disability, and survivor 
benefits to participating, eligible-employees. For the year ended June 30, 2019, there were 86 
contributing municipalities in Plan A and 69 in Plan B. 

Contributions of participating agencies are pooled within the system to fund accrued benefits, 
with contribution rates approved by state statute. The Municipal Employees' Retirement 
System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary infoimation. The report may be obtained by writing to Municipal 
Employees' Retirement System, 7937 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, 
or by calling (225) 925-4810. 

Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 356 of the 1954 regular session and amended by 
LRS 11:1756-11:1785. The following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is 
provided for general information purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate 
statutes for more complete information. 
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5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Benefits Provided - Retirement Benefits 

Any member of Plan B who was hired before January I, 2013, can retire providing the member 
meets one of the following criteria; 

1. Any age with thirty (30) years of creditable service. 
2. Age 60 with a minimum of ten (10) or more years of creditable ser\dce. 
3. Any age with ten (10) years creditable service eligible for disability benefits. 
4. Survivor's benefits require five (5) years creditable service at death of member. 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan B shall 
consist of an amount equal to two percent of the member's monthly average final 
compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service. Final average compensation is the 
average monthly earnings during the highest sixty consecutive months, or joined months if 
service was interrupted. However, under certain conditions, as outlined in the statutes, the 
benefits are limited to specified amounts. 

Any member of Plan B who was hired on or after January 1, 2003 (Tier 2) can retire providing 
the member meets one of the following criteria: 

1. Age 67 with seven (7) or more years of creditable service. 
2. Age 62 with ten (10) or more years of creditable servdce. 
3. Age 55 with thirty (30) or more years of creditable service. 
4. Any age with twenty-five (25) years of creditable service, exclusive of military services 

and unused sick leave. However, any member retiring under this subsection shall have 
their benefits actuarially reduced from the earliest age of which the member would be 
entitled to a vested deferred benefit under any provision of this section, if the member 
had continued in service to that age. 

The monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan B Tier 2 shall consist 
of an amount equal to two percent of the member's final compensation multiplied by his years 
of creditable service. Final average compensation is the average monthly earnings during the 
highest sixty consecutive months, or joined months if service was interrupted. However, under 
certain conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specified amounts. 

Retirement Benefits - Survivor Benefits 

Upon death of any member of Plan B with five (5) or more years of creditable servdce, not 
eligible for normal retirement, the plan provides for benefits for the surviving spouse as 
outlined in the statutes. 
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5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Benefits Provided - Survdvor Benefits (Continued) 

a) Surviving spouse who is married no less than twelve (12) months immediately 
preceding death of member, shall be paid a monthly benefit equal to thirty percent of 
the member's final compensation, payable when the surviving spouse attains the age of 
sixty years or becomes disabled and payable for as long as the sur\dving spouse lives, 
or 

b) A monthly benefit equal to the actuarial equivalent of the benefit described above, but 
not less than fifteen percent of the member's final compensation, payable upon the 
death of the member and payable for as long as the surviving spouse lives. Selecting 
this benefit precludes the survivor from eligibility for the thirty-percent benefit payable 
when the surviving spouse shall attain the age of sixty years. 

Any member of Plan B who is eligible for normal retirement at time of death and who leaves a 
surviving spouse will be deemed to have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalf of the 
surviving spouse on the date of death. Such benefits will begin only upon proper application 
and are paid in lieu of any other survivor benefits. 

Any member of Plan B who has not withdrawn their accumulated contributions and had at least 
twenty years of service credit at time of death, surviving spouse shall receive benefits for as 
long as he/she lives as outlined in the statutes. 

Benefits Provided - DROP Benefits 

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a servdce retirement allowance, any member 
of Plan B who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan 
(DROP) for up to three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During participation in the plan, 
employer contributions are payable but employee contributions cease. The monthly retirement 
benefits that would be payable, had the person elected to cease employment and receive a 
service retirement allowance, are paid into the DROP fund. Interest is earned when the member 
has completed DROP participation. Interest earnings are based upon the actual rate of return on 
the investments identified as DROP funds for the period. In addition, no cost-of-living 
increases are payable to participants until employment which made them eligible to become 
members of the System has been terminated for a least one full year. 

Upon termination of emploj-ment prior to or at the end of the specified period of participation, 
a participant in the DROP may receive, at his option, a lump sum from the account equal to the 
payments into the account, a true annuity based upon his account balance in that fund, or any 
other method of payment if approved by the board of trustees. If a participant dies during the 
participation in the DROP, a lump sum equal to the balance in his account shall be paid to his 
named beneficiary or, if none, to his estate. If employment is not terminated at the end of three 
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5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Benefits Provided - DROP Benefits (Continued) 

years, payments into the DROP fund cease and the person resumes active contributing 
membership in the System. 

Benefits Provided - Disability Benefits 

For Plan B, a member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he has at least 
ten years of creditable service; in which he would receive a regular retirement under retirement 
provisions. A member shall not be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he has at 
least ten years of creditable service, is not eligible for normal retirement, and has been 
officially certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. Upon retirement caused 
by disability, a member of Plan B shall be paid a disability benefit equal to the lesser of thirty 
percent of his final average compensation or two percent of his final average compensation 
multiplied by his years of creditable service, whichever is greater or an amount equal to two 
percent of the member's final average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable 
service, projected to his earliest normal retirement age. 

Benefits Provided - Cost-of-Living Increases 

The System is authorized under state law to grant a cost-of-living increase to members who 
have been retired for at least one year. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's 
original benefit for each full calendar year since retirement and may only be granted if 
sufficient funds are available from investment income in excess of nonnal requirements. State 
law allows the System to grant additional cost-of-living increases to all retirees and 
beneficiaries who are age sixty-five and above equal to 2% of the benefit being received on 
October I, 1977, or the original benefit, if retirement commenced after that date. 

Benefits Provided - Deferred Benefits 

Plan B provides for deferred benefits for members who terminate before being eligible for 
retirement. Once the member reaches the appropriated age for retirement, benefits become 
payable. Benefits are based on statutes in effect at time of withdrawal. 

Contributions 

Contributions for all members are established by state statute. Member contributions are at 5% 
of eamable compensation for Plan B. The contributions are deducted from the member's salary 
and remitted to Municipal Employees' Retirement System by the Village. 
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5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Contributions (Continued) 

According to state statute, contributions for all employers are actuarially determined each year. 
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the employer contribution rate was 14.00% of member's 
earnings for Plan B. 

According to state statute, the System also receives one-fourth (1/4) of 1% of ad valorem taxes 
collected within the respective parishes except for Orleans. Tax monies are apportioned 
between Plan A and Plan B in proportion to salaries of plan participants. Tax monies received 
from East Baton Rouge Parish are apportioned between the Municipal Employees' Retirement 
System and the Employees' Retirement System of the City of Baton Rouge. The System also 
receives revenue sharing funds each year appropriated by the Legislature. These additional 
sources of income are used as additional employer contributions and considered support from 
non-employer contributing entities. 

Administrative costs of the System are financed through employer contributions. 

The Village's employer contributions to Municipal Employees' Retirement System for the year 
ended June 30, 2019 were $24,828, and were equal to the required contributions for each year. 
Revenue recognized for contributions funded by the State of Louisiana amounted to S5,540 for 
the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resource Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2019, the Village reported a liability of $186,612 for its proportionate share of the 
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The Village's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the Village's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially detennined. At June 30, 
2018, the Village's proportionate was 0.220627%, which was a decrease of 0.018557% from 
its proportion measured as of June 30,2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Village recognized pension expense of $39,123 less 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions of $9,024. 
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Municipal Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities., Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resource Related to Pensions (Continued) 

At June 30, 2019, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Governmental Activities 
Deferred Deferred 
Outflows Inflows 

ofResourees ofResources ofResoiirces ofResoiffces 

Business-Type Activities 
Deferred Deferred 
Outflows Inflows 

Differences l^tween expected and 
actual experknce 

Changes m assunptions 

Net difference l^tween projected and actual 
earnings of pensbn pbn investments 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

Enq)loyer contributions subsequent to 
measurement date 

395 

5,516 

23,960 

6,194 

19,615 

6.640 S 105 

1466 

6.370 

.765 

7.748 

5.213 
55J 14.388 S 14.802 $ 1.825 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Village's contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ending .Tune 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Year ending: 

Jime 30, 2020 

.Tune 30, 2021 

June 30, 2022 

Jime 30. 2023 

$ 15,126 

8,654 
2,719 

942 
$ 27,441 

39 



VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30.2019 

5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

The net pension liability was measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefits 
payments to be provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that 
is attributed to those employees' past periods of service, less the amount of the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position. The components of the net pension liability of the Village as of June 30, 
2019, are as follows; 

Total Pension Liability 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Total Net Pension Liability 

PlanB 
542,450 
355,838 

186.612 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total net pension 
liability in the June 30, 2018 valuation, are as follows: 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Expected Remaining 
Service Eives 

Investment Rate of Return 

Projected Salary Increases 

Mortality 

June 30, 2018 

Entry Age Normal 

3 years 

7.275%, net of investment expense 

5.0% (2.6% inflation) 

RP-2000 Employees Sex Distinct Table for Active 
Members (set back 2 years for males and females) 

RP-2000 Health Annuitant Sex Distinct Table for 
healthy annuitants (set forward 2 years for males and 1 
year for females projected to 2028 using Scale AA) 

RP-2000 Disabled Lives Mortality Table for 
disabled annuitants (set back 5 years for males and 3 
years for females) 
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5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (Continued) 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments The present value of the future retirement benefits is 
based on benefits currently being paid by the System 
and includes previously granted cost-of-living 
increases. The projected benefit payments do not 
include provisions for potential future increases not yet 
authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was detennined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for 
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjustment for the effect of 
rebalancing/'diversification. The resulting expected long-term rate of return was 7.275% for the 
year ended June 30, 2018. 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the 
System's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2018, are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Cbss 
Public equity 
Public fixed incon« 
Alternatives 

Totals 
Inflation 

EjqDected ArMirtKtic Nominal Retum 

Long-Term 
Ejqjected 

Target Portfolio Real 

Allocation Rate ofRetum 
50% 2.20% 
35% 1.50% 
15% 0.60% 
100% 4.30% 

2.70% 
7.00% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.275% for the year ended 
June 30, 2018. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that 
contributions from participating employers will be made at the actuarially detennined rates, 
which are calculated in accordance with relevant statutes and approved by the Board of 
Trustees and the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on those 
assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of retum on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (Continued) 

The effects of certain other changes in the net pension liability are required to be included in 
pension expense over the current and future periods. The effects on the total pension liability of 
(1) changes of economic and demographic assumptions or of other inputs and (2) differences 
between expected and actual experience are required to be included in pension expense in a 
systematic and rational manner over a closed period equal to the average of the expected 
remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with benefits through the pension 
plan (active employees and inactive employees), determined as the beginning of the 
measurement period. The effect on net pension liability of differences between the projected 
earnings on pension plan investments and actual experience with regard to those earnings is 
required to be included in pension expense in a systematic and rational manner over a closed 
period of five years, beginning with the current period. The expected remaining service lives 
(ERSL) for 2018 is 3 years for Plan B. 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following represents the net pension liability of the Village calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.275%, as well as what the Village's net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.275%) or one percentage point 
higher (8.275%) than the current discount rate (assuming all other assumptions remain 
unchanged): 

Current 
1 % Decrease Discount 1 % Increase 

(6.275%) Rate (7.275%) (8.275%) 
Enpbyer's proportionate share 
ofthe net pensbn liability $ 244,907 $ 186,612 $ 137,058 

Retirement Svstem Audit Report 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System issued a stand-alone audit report on its financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2018. Access to the audit report can be found on the 
System's website: www.mersla.com or on the Office of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's 
official website: www.lla.state.la.us. 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

At June 30, 2019, there were no payables to MERS for June 2019 employee and employer 
legally-required contributions. 
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5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

Plan Description 

The Village provides pension benefits for substantially all full-time employees of the Village 
of Folsom Police Department through the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of 
Louisiana. The retirement system is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer plan which was created 
for full-time municipal police officers in Louisiana. Membership in the System is mandatory 
for any full-time police officer employed by a municipality of the State of Louisiana and 
engaged in law enforcement, empowered to make arrests, providing he or she does not have to 
pay social security and providing he or she meets the statutory criteria. The System provides 
retirement benefits for municipal police officers. The projections of benefit payments in the 
calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to current active 
and inactive employees through the System in accordance with benefit terms and any 
additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. 

Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211-
11:2233. The following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for 
general information purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for 
more complete infoimation. 

Benefits Provided - Retirement Benefits 

Membership Prior to January 1, 2013 

A member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of the System and has 
25 years of creditable service at any age or has 20 years of creditable service and is age 50 or 
has 12 years of creditable service and is age 55. A member is eligible for early retirement after 
he has been a member of the System for 20 years of creditable service at any age with an 
actuarially reduced benefit. 

Benefit rates are 3 1/3% of average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the 
highest 36 consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of 
years of creditable servdce not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the 
benefits range from forty to sixty percent of the member's average final compensation for the 
surviving spouse. In addition, each child under age eighteen receives benefits equal to ten 
percent of the member's average final compensation or $200 per month, whichever is greater. 
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5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Benefits Provided - Retirement Benefits (Continued) 

Membership Commencing January I, 2013 

Member eligibility for regular retirement, early retirement, disability and survivor benefits are 
based on Hazardous Duty and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under the Hazardous Duty sub 
plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of the System and 
has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 12 years of creditable service at age 55. 
Under the Non Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he 
has been a member of the System and has 30 years of creditable service at any age, 25 years of 
creditable seivdce at age 55, or 10 years of creditable seivdce at age 60. Under both sub plans, a 
member is eligible for early retirement after he has been a member of the System for 20 years 
of creditable service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. 

Under the Hazardous and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are 3% and 2 UVo, 
respectively, of average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the highest 60 
consecutive months or joined months if servdce was interrupted) per number of years of 
creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statues, the 
benefits range from 25% - 55% of the member's average final compensation for the surviving 
spouse. In addition, each child under age eighteen receives 10% of average final compensation 
or $200 per month, whichever is greater. If a deceased member had less than ten years of 
service, the beneficiary will receive a refund of employee contributions only. 

Benefits Provided - Cost-of-Living Adjustments 

The Board of Trustees is authorized to provide annual cost-of-living adjustments (COLA) 
computed on the amount of the current regular retirement disability, beneficiary or survivor's 
benefit, not to exceed 3% in any given year. The Board is authorized to provide an additional 
2% COLA, computed on the member's original benefit, to all regular retirees, disability, 
survivors and beneficiaries who are 65 years of age or older on the cut-off date which 
determines eligibility. 

No regular retiree, survivor or beneficiary shall be eligible to receive a COLA until benefits 
have been received at least one full fiscal year and the payment of such COLA, when 
authorized, shall not be effective until the lapse of at least one-half of the fiscal year. Members 
who elect early retirement are not eligible for a COLA until they reach regular retirement age. 
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5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Benefits Provided - Deferred Retirement Option Plan 

A member is eligible to elect to enter a deferred retirement option plan (DROP) when he is 
eligible for regular retirement based on the member's sub plan participation. Upon filing the 
application for the program, the employee's active membership in the System is terminated. At 
the entry date into the DROP, the employee and employer contributions cease. The amount to 
be deposited into the DROP account is equal to the benefit computed under the retirement plan 
elected by the participant at date of application. The duration of participation in the DROP is 
36 months or less. If employment is terminated after the three-year period the participant may 
receive his benefits by lump sum payment or a true annuity. If emplo3nnent is not terminated, 
active contributing membership into the System shall resume and upon later termination, he 
shall receive additional retirement benefit based on the additional service. For those eligible to 
enter DROP prior to January 1, 2004, DROP accounts shall earn interest subsequent to the 
termination of DROP participation at a rate of half of one percentage point below the 
percentage rate of return of the System's investment portfolio as certified by the actuary on the 
annual basis but will never lose money. For those eligible to enter DROP subsequent to 
January 1, 2004, an irrevocable election is made to earn interest based on the System's 
investment portfolio return or a money market investment return. This could result in a 
negative earnings rate being applied to the account. 

If the member elects a money market investment return, the funds are transferred to a 
government money market account and earn interest at the money market rate. 

Benefits Provided - Initial Benefit Option Plan 

In 1999, the State Legislature authorized the System to establish an Initial Benefit Option 
program. Initial Benefit Option is available to members who are eligible for regular retirement 
and have not participated in DROP. The Initial Benefit Option program provides both a one­
time single sum payment of up to 36 months of regular monthly retirement benefit, plus a 
reduced monthly retirement benefit for life. Interest is computed on the balance based on the 
same criteria as DROP. 

Employer Contributions 

Contributions for all members are actuarially determined as required by state law but cannot be 
less than 9% of the employees' eamable compensation excluding overtime but including state 
supplemental pay. 
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5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Employer Contributions (Continued) 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the contribution rates were as follows: 

Contributbn Rates 
Employee Empbyer Total 

Members hired prior to 1/1/2013 10.00% 32.25% 42.25% 
Hazardous Duty Members hired after 1/1/2013 10.00% 32.25% 42.25% 
Non Hazardous Duty Members hired after 1/1/2013 8.00% 32.25% 40.25% 
Members whose eamable compensatbn is 

fess than poverty guidelines 7.50% 34.75% 42.25% 

The Village of Folsom's employer contributions to the Municipal Police Employees' 
Retirement System for the year ended June 30, 2019 were $47,473, and were equal to the 
required contributions for each year. 

Non-employer Contributions 

The System also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional employer contributions. 
The tax is considered support from a non-contributing entity and appropriated by the 
legislature each year based on an actuarial study. Non-employer contributions are recognized 
as revenue during the year ended June 30, 2019, and excluded from pension expense. 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2019, the Village reported a liability of $381,067 for its proportionate share of the 
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The Village's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the 
projection of the Village's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 
2018, the Village's proportion was 0.045075%, which was a decrease of 0.005017% from its 
proportion measured as of June 30, 2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Village recognized pension expense of $56,748 plus 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions of $ 12,977. 
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5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and PefeiTcd Outflows of Resources and PefeiTcd 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 

At June 30, 2019, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and 
actual experience 

Changes in assumptions 

Net differenee between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan invetments 

Changes in proportion and differenees 
between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

Employer contrfcutions subsequent to 

measurement date 

Deferred 
Outflows 

of Resources 

$ 1,718 

24,902 

18,267 

26,324 

Deferred 
Inflows 

of Resources 

$ 19,473 

30.245 

47,473 
118,684 $ 49,718 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows or resources related 
to pensions will be recognized in pension expenses as follows: 

Year Ended: 

Jime 30, 2020 

Jime30, 2021 

Jime 30, 2022 

Jime 30, 2023 

35,108 

5,810 

(20,086) 

661 

21,493 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

The net pension liability was measured as portion of the present value of projected benefits 
payments to be provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that 
is attributed to those employees' past periods of service, less the amount of the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position. The components of the net pension liability of the Village as of June 30, 
2019. are as follows: 
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5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (Continued) 

Total Pensbn Liability 
Plan FidiK^iary Net Position 

Total Net Pension Liability 

1355,487 
974,420 

381,067 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the assumptions 
used in the June 30, 2018 actuarial funding valuation, and were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2014. In cases where benefit 
structures were changed after the study period, assumptions were based on estimates of future 
experience. A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total 
pension liability in the June 30, 2018 valuation are as follows: 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Investment Rate of Return 

Expected Remaining 
Service Eives 

Inflation Rate 

Salary-' Increases, including 
Inflation and Merit 

June 30, 2018 

Entry Age Nonnal Cost 

7.20% net of investment expense 

2018-4 years 
2017 - 4 years 
2016 -4 years 
2015 -4 years 

2.60% 

Years of Service 
1-2 
3-23 

Over 23 

Salary Growth Rate 
9.75% 
4.75% 
4.25% 

Mortality RP-2000 Combined Healthy with Blue Collar Adjustment 
Sex Distinct Tables projected to 2029 by Scale AA (set 
back 1 year for females) for healthy annuitants and 
beneficiaries. 

RP-2000 Disabled Lives Table set back 5 years for males 
and set back 3 years for females for disabled annuitants. 
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5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (Continued) 

Mortality RP-2000 Employee Table set back 4 years for males and 
3 years for females for active members. 

Cost-of-Eiving Adjustments The present value of future retirement benefits is based 
on benefits currently being paid by the System and 
includes previously granted cost-of-living increases. The 
present values do not include provisions for potential 
fiiture increases not yet authorized by the Board of 
Trustees. 

The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience study performed by the 
prior actuary on plan data for the period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2014, and review of 
similar law enforcement mortality. The date was assigned credibility weighting and combined 
with a standard table to produce current levels of mortality. This mortality was then projected 
forward to a period equivalent to the estimated duration of the System's liabilities. Annuity 
values calculated based on this mortality were compared to those produced by using a set-back 
of standard tables. The result of the procedure indicated that the tables used would produce 
liability values approximating the appropriate generational mortality tables. 

The best estimates of the arithmetic nominal rates of return for each major asset class included 
in the System's target allocation as of June 30, 2018, are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term 
Expected 

Target Portfolio Real 
Asset Ckss Alfocation Rate of Retirni 

Equity 52% 3.58% 
Fixed incone 22% 0.46% 
Alternatives 20% 1.07% 
Other 6% 0.17% 
Totab 100% 5.28% 
Inflation 2.75% 
Expected Ariflimetic Nomiml Return 8.03% 
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5. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (Continued) 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will 
be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers 
will be made at the actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration 
the recommendation of the System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following represents the net pension liability of the Village calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.20%, as well as what the Village's net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower 6.20% or one percentage higher 8.20% 
than the current rate. 

Current 
1% Decrease Dscount 1% Increase 

(6.20%) Rate (7.20%) (8.20%) 
En^ibyer's proportionate sliare 

ofthenetpenskmliabiKty $ 535,504 $ 381,067 $ 251,500 

Retirement System Audit Report 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System issued a stand-alone audit report on its 
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018. Access to the audit report can be found 
on the System's website: www. 1 ampers.org or on the Office of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's 
official website: www.lla.state.la.us. 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

At June 30, 2019, there were no payables to MPERS for June 2019 employee and employer 
legally-required contributions. 
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INSURANCE COVERAGE 

Type of Coverage Period ofCoverase Coverage 

Commercial Property 1/1/2019 to 1/1/2020 

Fiielity Bond 12/15/2018 to 12/15/2019 
12/15/2018 to 12/15./2019 

12/15/2018 to 12/15/2019 
12/15/2018 to 12/15/2019 
12/15/2018 to 12/15/2019 
12/15/2018 to 12/15/2019 

12/152018 to 12/15/2019 
7/12019 to 7/1/2020 

Workers' Condensation 1/1/2019 to 1/1/2020 

Automotive Liabilfty 2/12019 to 2/1/2020 

Commerical General Lability 2/12019 to 2/1/2020 

Law EnforcenKnl Oflker 2/1/2019 to 2/1/2020 

Errors and Omissbns 2/12019 to 2/1/2020 

Town Hafl 
Water and Sewer 
Polke Department 

Mayor 
Aldenmn & 

Mayor Pro Tern 
Alderwoman 
Municipal Clerk 
Utility Cbrk 
Planning & Zoning 

Clerk 
Police Secretary 
Police Chief 

Policy Limk 

Aggre^te and Each 

532,851 
97,723 

305,677 

40,000 

40,000 
40,000 
65,000 
65,000 

65,000 
5,000 
5,000 

Statutory 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

UTILITY RATES 

Water - Residential 
Up to 2,000 Gallery 
Over 2,000 Gallons 

Water - Commercial 
Up to 2,000 Gallons 
Over 2,000 Gallons 

Sewer - Residential 
Up to 2,000 Gallons 
Over 2,000 Gallons 

Sewer - Commercial 
Up to 2,000 Gallons 
Over 2,000 Gallons 

$ 10.00 
Additional $3.00 per Thousand 

$ 20.00 
Additional $3.00 per Thousand 

$35.00 
Additional $5.00 per Thousand 

$ 60.00 
Additional $8.00 per Thousand 
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7. UTILITY RATES (Continued) 

Sewer - Residential 
Unmetered (No Water) Fixed Rate of $30.00 

Sewer - Commercial 
Unmetered (No Water) Fixed Rate of $50.00 

Garbage Fixed Rate of $15.25 

At June 30, 2019, the Village served the following customers; 

Water 603 

Sewer 282 

Garbage 260 

Total 1,145 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

The following is a summary of long-term liability transactions and total long-term liabilities of 
the Village for the year ended June 30, 2019: 

Water Sewer Amormts Due 
Fund Fund Total Within Om: Year 

Revenue Bonds: 
Balance at July 1,2018 $ 360,238 $ 195,262 $ 555,500 $ 

Bonds Issued -
Bond Retired (14,207) (4,933) (19,140) 

Balance atJune 30,2019 $ 346,031 $ 190,329 $ 536,360 $ 20,043 

Bond Antic^ation Notes: 
Balance atJi%'1,2018 $ - $ 234,644 $ 234,644 

Notes Issued - 1,461,307 1,461,307 
Notes Retired -

Balance atJune 30,2019 $ - $ 1,695,951 $ 1,695,951 $ 1,695,951 

The revenue bonds and the bond anticipation notes are considered to be direct placements. The 
Village wdll be in default if it fails to pay principal or interest when due on the revenue bonds. 
In the event of default, the owners of the bonds shall be entitled to exercise all rights and 
powers for which provision is made under Eouisiana law. 
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

Revenue Bond: 
$550,000 Utility Bonds dated 3/15/99: purchased 
byUSDA - Rural Utilities Serv^ices, due inmontlify 
installments of $2,585, with interest at 4.75% per 
annum throu^ February 29, 2039, secured by the 
revenues of the Water Fimd. $ 346,031 

Revenue Bond: 
$250,000 Utility Bonds dated 9/9/02: piurchased 
byUSDA - Riffal Utilitks Servkes, di^ innwntlify 
installments of $1,135, wifli interest at 4.50% per 
amiun throu^ April 2044, secwed by the 
revenues of the Sewer Fund. $ 190,329 

BOIKI Antic^ation Note: 
$1,057,000 Bond Antic^ation Note Payable dated 
April 3, 2018; pwchased by Patterson State Bank, 
due on October 3, 2019 wMi interest at 2.7% per 
anniunthrou^ maturity. The note constitutes a limtted 
ard specml obligation princiial and interest of whkh 
are payable from proceeds ofunksi^d Sewer Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2019 autlwrized to be issued in tiie anwunt 
of $ 1,761,000. $ 677,636 

Bond Antici)ation Note: 
$704,000 Bond Anticipation Note Payabfe dated 
April 3, 2018; purcliased by die Eouisiana Publk 
Facilitks Audiority, di^ on October 3, 2019 with 
interest at 1.35%per annumtiiroughnmtiuity. Tlie 
note constitutes a limited and special obligation 
princ^al and interest ofwhkh are payable from 
proceeds ofimissued Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2019 
audiorized to be ksi^d in the anwimt of $1,761,000. $ 1,018,315 
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

The future debt ser\ice requirements of the bonds and notes are as follows; 

Water Fund Sewer Fund Total 
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2020 $ 14,881 $ 16,131 $1,701,113 S 8,458 81,715,994 $ 24,589 
2021 15,603 15,409 5,399 8,221 21,002 23,630 
2022 16,361 14,651 5,647 7,973 22,008 22,624 

2023 17,155 13,857 5,907 7,714 23,062 21,571 
2024 17,988 13,024 6,178 7,442 24,166 20,466 

2025-2029 103,918 51,142 35,417 32,684 139,335 83,826 

2030-2034 131,715 23,345 44,334 23,766 176,049 47,111 
2035-2039 28,410 707 55,497 12,603 83,907 13,310 
2040-2044 - - 26,788 1,308 26,788 1,308 

Total $ 346,031 $ 148,266 $1,886,280 S 110,169 52,232,311 $ 258,435 

INTERFUND RECEIVABLE/PAYABEE 

The primary purpose of inteiiund receivables/payables is to loan monies from the General 
Fund to individual funds to cover current expenditures. The composition of interflmd balances 
at June 30, 2019, is as follows: 

Receivable Fimd Payable Fimd 

General Fiu^ 

Sheete & Drainage FUIKI 

Sewer Fimd 

Garbage Fund 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

Sales Tax Fimd 

W^ater Fund 

Sewer Fund 

Sales TaxFittxi 

Water Fimd 

Water Fimd 

Anwimt 
g 7,979 

4,591 
1,306 

146 

13,747 

4,631 
g 32.400 

Operating transfers between funds consist primarily of sales tax revenues transferred out of the 
Sales Tax Fund to the paiticular funds for which the sales tax revenue is to be used. A 
summary of interfund transfers at June 30, 2019, is as follows: 
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10. INTERFUND TRANSFERS (Continued) 

Transfer In 

General 
Fund 

Safes 
Tax 
Fund 

StreeB & 
Drainage 

Fund 
Water 
Fund 

Sewer 
Fund 

Garbage 
Fund Total 

Transfer Out: 
General Fund $ $ $ $ S $ 5,000 $ 5,000 
Safes Tax Fund 522,512 - 98.72? 566 - - 621,805 
Streets & Drainage Fii nd - - 155,138 - - 155,138 
Water Fund - - - - - - -
Sewer Fund - - - 14,829 - - 14,829 
Garba^ Fund - - - 5,293 393 - 5,686 

$522,512 $ $98,727 $175,826 S 393 $ 5,000 $802,458 

11. RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Governmental Funds 

The Village entered into an intergovernmental agreement with St. Tammany Parish, Eouisiana, 
effective April 1, 2013, for the sharing of sales tax revenue generated in Sales Tax District No. 
3. Proceeds from the tax shall be used for public works that benefit the areas within a specified 
growth management area located in Sales Tax District No. 3. As of June 30, 2019, $299,114 
was restricted under this agreement. 

Provrietarv Funds 

On September 9, 2002, the Village issued $250,000 of Sewer Utility Revenue Bonds, and on 
March 15, 2000, the Village issued $550,000 of Water Utility Revenue Bonds. The proceeds of 
these bonds, along with a grant for U.S. Department of Agriculture, were used to fund sewer 
and water system improvements. The bond resolutions of these issues require the Village to 
restrict and maintain the following funds: 

Revenue Bond Sinking Fund 

The requirements call for the establishment and maintenance of Utility Revenue Bond 
and Sinking Funds sufficient to pay promptly and in full the principal of and the interest 
on bonds authorized as they become due and payable. As the Village makes monthly 
bond payments on both issues, the U.S. Department of Agriculture has waived this 
requirement. 

Revenue Bond Reseiv^e Fund 

The Village is required to deposit monthly $57 into the Sewer Fund and $129 into the 
Water Fund until a reseiwe amount equal to the highest annual debt service amount 
(principal and interest) is obtained. This fund is restricted to be used to pay bonds in 
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11 • RESTRICTED ASSETS (Continued) 

Proprietary Funds (Continued) 

Revenue Bond Reserve Fund (Continued) 

case of default. As of June 30, 2019, the requirement had been met for the Water and 
Sewer Funds. 

Depreciation and Contingency Fund 

The resolution called for the establishment and maintenance of a Depreciation and 
Contingency Fund to care for depreciation, extensions, additions, improvements and 
replacements necessary to properly operate the systems. Regular monthly deposits of 
$57 in the Sewer Fund and $129 into the Water Fund are to be made with the regularly 
designated fiscal agent of the Village. As of June 30, 2019, the requirement had been 
met for the Water and Sewer Funds. 

12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to toits; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During 
the year ended June 30, 2019, the Village carried insurance through various commercial 
carriers to cover all risk of losses. The Village has no settled claims resulting from these risks 
that exceeded its commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

The Village receives sales tax revenue from sales reported within the municipal boundaries and 
a growth management area of the Village. It is possible the tax collector could audit businesses 
that have reported sales within these areas and require sales proceeds previously received by 
the Village to be redistributed to other taxing jurisdictions. Because these amounts cannot be 
reasonably estimated, no liability has been established for these amounts. 

13. CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS 

At June 30, 2019, the Village had several active construction contracts related to the sewer 
improvement project. The remaining commitments on these are as follows: 

Conlract Spent Remaining 
Project Amount to Date Commitment 

Sewer In5>rovement - CoMract A $ 708,400 S 672,980 $ 35,420 
Sewer Inprovement - Contract A Engineeiing 125,076 121,876 3,200 
Sewer In5>rovenient - Contmct B 568,015 401,809 166,206 
Sewer Inqrrowment-Contract C 344,107 309,697 34,410 
Sewer Inqrrovement - Contract C Engineering 109,800 100,114 

Total $ 1,855,398 S 1,606,476 $ 248,922 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2019 

Revem^s; 
Taxes: 

Franchise taxes 
Other 

Instance licenses 
Licenses and permits 
Other revenues 
Fines and forfeitures 

Interest income 
Total revenues 

Expendititt"es: 
CuiTent: 

General govemnKnt 
Public safety 
Capital outlay 

Total e3q3erdttiu"es 

DeficieiKy of re venues 
imder e^enditiffes 

Other financing sources: 
h^ansfers 

Total ofiier financing soirees 

Net change in fimd balaiKe 

FUIKI baknce, beginning of year 

Fimd balance, end of year 

Original 
Budget 

58,400 
6,700 

42,000 
88,400 

4,500 
15,000 

L300 

Final 
)roprk 

Budget 

Variance Wflh 
Actual Final Bidget 

(BiKigetary Favorable 
Bask) (Unlavorabte) 

58,400 
6,700 

61,000 
56,400 

500 
10,000 
1,300 

58,738 
6,989 

71,272 
57,543 
4,304 

18,027 
1363 

780.059 

338 
289 

10,272 
1,143 
3,804 
8,027 

63 
216,300 194,300 218,236 23,936 

272,250 
334,565 

309,750 
342,565 

67,000 

293,683 
335,995 

65,651 

16,067 
6,570 
1,349 

606,815 719,315 695,329 23,986 

(390,515) (525,015) (477,093) 47,922 

494,000 494,000 517,512 23,512 

494,000 494,000 517,512 23,512 

$ 103,485 $ (31,015) 40,419 $ 71,434 

820.478 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

General GovenHiKnt; 
SalarKS and wages 
OvertiiK 
PajTofl tax expeme 
Enployees petsion plan 
Enployee benefits - hospital aixi He 
Biulding inspection fees 
Dues and subscr^tions 
Gas alfowance 

Instance 
Professional - conputer 

Auditors 
Legal fees 
Accountant 
Municode 
Grantwriter 
Office si5>plies 
Coranimity evente 

Payroll expenses 
Publications 
Repairs ard nmintenance 
Xerox 
Serainara / n^etin^ 

Animal control 
Telephone - wireless 
Telephone - landline 
Intemet 
Other e}q>enses 

Utilities expense 

Total General Government 

Original 
Budget 

103,500 
500 

8,100 
10,600 
21,000 

4,000 
500 
600 

10,000 
6,000 

19,000 
15,000 
25,000 

5,000 
3,000 
5,900 
2,000 
1,300 
5,000 

5,000 

2,400 
4,000 
1,200 

50 
2,500 
2,600 
1,000 
1,000 
6.500 

Final 
>ropri£ 
Budget 

107,500 
500 

8,100 
10,600 
21,000 

4,000 
500 
600 

22,000 
6,000 

19,000 
15,000 
45,000 
5,000 
3,000 
7,400 
2,000 
1,300 
5,000 

5,000 

2,400 
4,000 
1,200 

50 
2,500 
2,600 
1,000 
1,000 
6,500 

Variance Wflh 
Actual Final Bidget 

(BiHgeLiry Favorable 
Basis) (Unfevorabfe) 

107,724 
389 

8,612 
9,857 

16,983 
2,975 

175 

23,101 
4,317 

15,060 
14,687 
42,294 
2,258 

7,588 
258 

1,852 
6,430 
5,930 
1,986 
5,487 
1,898 

1,425 
1,440 
1,651 
2,751 
6.555 

(224) 
111 

(512) 
743 

4,017 
1,025 

325 
600 

(1,101) 
1,683 
3,940 

313 
2,706 
2,742 
3,000 
(188) 

1,742 
(552) 

(1,430) 
(930) 
414 

(1,487) 
(698) 

50 
1,075 
1,160 

(651) 
(1,751) 

(55) 

272.250 309,750 293.683 16,067 



VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Public Safety; 
Salarfes and wages 
OvertiiK 
RetiienKnt expemes 
Payroll taxes 
Enpbyee benefits - hospital aixi He 

Radio eqiii3n]ent 
Fuel 
LA kw enforcenKnt fees 
DHH-TH/SCI T.F. 
Fforida Parishes Juvenife 
C.M.I.S. fees 
Crimestoppers 
Insiffance 
IiKiffance - Liability ard W/C 
Telephone 
Legal and professional 
Repairs and maintenance 
Office siq>plies 
Offier e^enses 
Si^pfies, equi3nKnt, and imifomB 
Payroll e}q)enses 
Utilities 
Training 

Total Public Safety 

Final Actual 
Original Appropriated (BiHgetary 
Budget Budget Basis) 

$ 176,600 $ 176,600 $ 178,827 
2,850 10,850 601 

46,500 46,500 47,473 
5,000 5,000 8,144 

40,000 40,000 38,839 
2,000 2,000 2,750 
4,000 4,000 -

6,500 6,500 8,416 
600 600 1,170 
200 200 145 
300 300 520 
65 65 120 

150 150 208 
3,500 3,500 4,723 

24,400 24,400 21,534 
4,000 4,000 5,582 
1,800 1,800 552 
6,000 6,000 4,881 
3,000 3,000 2,884 

300 
2,500 2,500 4,219 
1,100 1,100 717 
3,000 3,000 3,030 

500 500 360 

Variance Wflh 
Final Bidget 

334.565 342,565 335.995 

(Unfevorabfe) 

$ (2,227) 
10,249 

(973) 
(3,144) 
1,161 
(750) 

4,000 
(1,916) 

(570) 
55 

(220) 
(55) 
(58) 

(1,223) 
2,866 

(L582) 
1,248 
1,119 

116 
(300) 

(1,719) 
383 
(30) 
1^ 

$ 6,570 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - SALES TAX FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Budset 

Final 
>ropria 
Budset 

Revem^s; 
Taxes: 

Sales and iBe 
Grant reveni^s 
Other reveni^s 
Interest incon^ 

Total revenues 

Expenditiffes: 
Public works: 

726.000 

3.300 

726,000 
4,000 

3,300 
729,300 733.300 

Actual 
(Budgetary 

Basis) 

798,330 
4,566 
268 

5,456 
808,620 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditiffes 

Otlier financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers 

Total ofiier fimncing sources (uses) 

Net change in fimd balance 

Fimd balance, beginning 

Fund balance, ending 

636,600 624.600 703,654 

(630,000) (630,000) (621,805) 

(630,000) (630,000) (621,805) 

6.600 (5,400) 81,849 

1,001,724 

1.083.573 

Variance Wifii 
Final Budget 

Favorabte 

72,330 
566 
268 

2.156 
75,320 

Salaries and wages 51,500 58,500 57,885 615 
Overtime - 5,000 6,696 (1,696) 
Payroll taxes 4,600 4,600 4,974 (374) 
Enpfoyees pemion plan 6,800 6,800 7,807 (1,007) 
Di^byee benefits - hospital and life 14,000 14,000 10,803 3,197 
Bank service charges 200 200 180 20 
Office supplies 100 100 49 51 
ItBurance 3,500 7,500 4,548 2,952 
Street ligliting 12,000 12,000 12,024 (24) 

Total e}q3enditiu"es 92,700 108,700 104,966 3,734 

79,054 

.195 

.195 

87.249 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - STE^ETS AND DRAINAGE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Revem^s; 
Interest income 

Final 
Original Appropriated 
Budget Budget 

450 260 

Actual 
(Budgetary 

Basis) 

$ 347 

Variance Wflh 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(Unfevorabb) 

$ 87 
Total revenues 450 260 347 87 

Expenditures: 
Public works: 

Bank service charges - - - -

Office si^plies 100 100 199 (99) 
Repairs and maintenance 20,000 20,000 20,901 (901) 
Supplies 6,000 6,000 2,139 3,861 
Equ^nent 6,000 42,000 1,225 40,775 
Capital outlay 186,000 - 40,102 (40,102) 

Total e^enditures 218,100 68,100 64,566 3,534 

DeficieiKy of re venues 
over ejq)enditures (217,650) (67,840) (64,219) 3,621 

Other financing sources (cees) 
Operating hansfers 99,000 (87,000) (56,411) 30,589 

Total ofiier financing soirees (IBCS) 99,000 (87,000) (56,411) 30,589 

Net change in limd balance 

FUIKI baknce, beginning 

Fimd baknce, ending 

(118,650) $ (154,840) (120,630) 

419,890 

$ 299.260 

34.210 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILHY^ 

FOR THE SIX YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Municipal Empbvees' Retirement System: 

Employer's proportion of net pension liabiltf}' 
En^loyer's proportionate share of net pension liability 
Employer's covered-en^loyee payroll 
En^loyer's proportionate share of net pension liability 

as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 

pension Habilky 
Measurement date 

Mimicipal Polke Employees' Retirement System: 

Employer's proportion of net pension liabiltf}' 
Employer's proportionate share of net pensbn liability 
Employer's covered-en^loyee payroll 
En^loyer's proportionate share of net pension liability 

as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 

pension Habilky 
Measurement (Hte 

2014^^ 

0.288511% 
158,525 
186,800 

85% 

85.(K)% 

June 30, 2013 

2014^^ 

0.036226% 
289389 
107,589 

269% 

2015'^ 

0.280161% 
131,535 
188,329 

70% 

76.94% 
June 30, 2014 

2015'^ 

0.037933% 
237312 
98,318 

241% 

2016* 

0.223993% 
152336 
156,357 

97% 

68.71% 
June 30, 2015 

2016* 

0.037681% 
295,151 
99,905 

295% 

2017* 

0.212602% 
176327 
156,150 

113% 

63.34% 
June 30, 2016 

2017* 

0.048439% 
454,010 
135,416 

335% 

201i 

0.239184% 
206,951 
177,538 

117% 

62.49% 
June 30,2017 

2018* 

0.050092% 
437,326 
142,898 

306% 

2019* 

0.220627% 
186,613 
177,343 

105% 

65.60% 
June 30,2018 

2019* 

0.045075% 
381,067 
147,203 

259% 

66.71% 75.10% 70.73% 66.04% 70.08% 71.89% 
June 30. 2013 June 30. 2014 June 30. 2015 June 30. 2016 June 30,2017 June 30,2018 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

*The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

See accompanying notes to required suppkmentaiy information. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PENSION PLANS 

FOR THE SIX Y'EARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Mimicipal Empbyees' RetireiiKnt System 

Contrfoutions in 

Relation to 

Contractual^ Conhactualfy 

Fiscal Required Required 

Year Contribution Conttibittion 

2014 $ 16,479 $ 16,479 

2015 14,894 14,894 

2016 14,834 14,834 

2017 19,515 19,515 

2018 21,664 21,664 

2019 24,828 24,828 

ContiibutiDii 
Deficiency 
(Excess) 

Enpfoyer's 
Covered 
Pa^ofl 

E 188,329 
156,357 
156,150 
177,538 
163,499 
177,343 

Contributioiis 
as a % of 
Covered 
Payrol 

8.75% 
9.53% 
9.50% 
10.99% 
13.25% 
14.00% 

Mimicipal Police Einployees' Retirement S^tem 

ContributioiB in 

Relation to Conhibutions 

Contactimlfy Contractually Contribution Enpfoyer's as a % of 

Frical Reqirired Required Deficiency Covered Covered 

Year Conhibution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payrott 

2014 $ 30,479 $ 30,933 $ (454) $ 98,318 31.46% 

2015 30,921 30,948 (27) 99,905 30.98% 

2016 39,948 39,948 - 135,416 29.50% 

2017 45,370 45,370 - 142,898 31.75% 

2018 40,904 40,904 - 133,021 30.75% 

2019 47,473 47,473 - 147,203 32.25% 

SclKdifc is intended to show inlbrmation for 10 years. Additonal years will be 
they becoHK ai^ikbfe. 

as 

See acconpanj-ing notes to required sippfementary information. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF EMPEOYER'S 

SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY & SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S CONTRIBUTIONS TO 
THE PENSION PLANS 

FOR THE SIX YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System: 

Changes in Benefit Terms: 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2014 - None 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2015 — None 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2016 — None 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2017 — None 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2018 - None 

Changes in Assumptions: 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2014 - None 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2015; 

1. Amounts reported in the actuary valuation dated June 30. 2015, for MERS reflect an adjustment in 
the discount rate, the inflation rate, projected salary increases, and the mortality rate used to 
measure the total pension liability. The discount rate for MERS was lowered from 7.75% to 7.5% in 
2015. The inflation rate for MERS was lowered from 3.00% to 2.875% in 2015. The projected 
salary increase assumption was lowered from 5.75% to 5% in 2015. Hie mortality rate assumption 
was changed from set based upon aggregated data eollected for the period July 1, 2006 to June 30 
2010, to set based upon aggregated data collected for the period July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2014, for 
the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2016 — None 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2017: 

1. Amounts reported in the actuary valuation dated June 30, 2017, for MERS reflect an adjustment in 
the discount rate and the inflation rate used to measure the total pension liability. The discount rate 
for MERS was lowered from 7.5% to 7.4% in 2017. The inflation rate included in salary increases 
was lowered from 2.875% to 2.775% in 2017. 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2018: 

1. Amounts reported in the actuary valuation dated June 30, 2018, for MERS reflect an adjustment in 
the discount rate and the inflation rate used to measure the total pension liability. The discount rate 
for MERS was lowered from 7.4% to 7.275% in 2018. The inflation rate included in salary 
increases was lowered from 2.775% to 2.6%. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF EMPEOYER'S 

SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY & SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S CONTRIBUTIONS TO 
THE PENSION PLANS 

FOR THE SIX YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System: 

Changes in Benefit Terms: 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2014; 

1. Based on the 2013 valuation, the Board voted to grant cost-of-living increase pursuant to RS. 
ll:2225(A)(7)(c)and(d). 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2015 - None 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2016 - None 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2017 — None 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2018 — None 

Changes in Assumptions: 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2014; 

1. Act 402 or 2014 changed the amortization period for all the existing outstanding unfunded liability 
bases from various periods ranging from one to thirty years to twenty years. The act also sets the 
period to amortize all future actuarial gains and losses as well changes in assumptions and benefits 
at fifteen years. 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2015: 

1. Amounts reported in the actuary valuation dated June 30, 2015, for MPERS reflect an adjustment in 
the discount rate, the inflation rate, the mortality rate, and projected salary increases used to 
measure the total pension liability. The diseount rate was lowered from 7.75% to 7.5% in 2015. The 
inflation rated was lowered from 3.00% to 2.875% in 2015. The mortality rate assumption was 
changed from set based upon the results of an actuarial study for the period July 1, 2003 to June 30, 
2008, to set based upon the results of an actuarial study for the period July 1, 2010 to June 30, 
2014, for the year ended June 30, 2014. Projected salary ehanges were as follows; 

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 

Years of Service Salary Growth Rate Salary Growth Rate 

1 9.75% 10.00% 
2 9.75% 6.00% 

3-19 4.75% 4.30%o 
20-23 4.75% 5.50% 
24-29 4.25% 5.50% 

30 & Over 4.25% 4.00% 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF EMPEOYER'S 

SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY & SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S CONTRIBUTIONS TO 
THE PENSION PLANS 

FOR THE SIX YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System: (Continued) 

Changes in Assumptions: (Continued) 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2016 - None 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2017: 

1. Amounts reported in the actuary valuation dated June 30, 2017, for MPERS reflect an adjustment in 
the discount rate and the inflation rate used to measwe the total pension liability. The discount rate 
for MPERS was 7.5% to 7.325% in 2017. The inflation rate included in salary increases was 
lowered from 2.875% to 2.7% in 2017. 

Measurement Date - June 30, 2018: 

1. Amounts reported in the actuary valuation dated June 30, 2018, for MPERS reflect an adjustment in 
the discount rate and the inflation rate used to measure the total pension liability. The discount rate 
was from 7.325% to 7.2% in 2018. The inflation rate included in salary increases was lowered from 
2.7% to 2.6% in 2018. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PAID TO GOVERNING BOARD 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

Governing Boardmeinber Conpensation 

Lance Wilfie 
Mayor 
116 Keeneland Place #20 
Folsom, LA 70437 $ 8,700 

JillMathies 
Aldenvonmn 
396 Village FanrB Lane 
Folsom, LA 70437 6,400 

George Garrett 
Aldennan 
419 Village FamB Lane 
Folsom, LA 70437 6,400 

Paillette Lee 
Alderwoimn - Jufy 1, 2018 to January 14, 2019 
13165 Cleveland Street 
PO Box 535 
Folsom, LA 70437 2,700 

Shawn Dilfon 
Alderman - January 14, 2019 to June 30, 2019 
82414 Austin Street 
Folsom, LA 70437 3,700 

Total $ 27,900 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, OR OTHER 

PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Agency Head Name: Mayor Lance Willie - July 01. 2018 to June 30. 2019 

Purpose Amount 

Salary $ 8,700 
Reimbiffsenents 
Travel ^ 

$ 8,700 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
EINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 

MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OE EINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PEREORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

December 30, 2019 

To the Honorable Lance Willie 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 
Village of Eolsom, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Eolsom, Louisiana (the 
Village), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village's basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 30, 2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we 
considered the Village of Eolsom, Louisiana's intemal control over financial 
reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Village's intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Village's intemal control. 

www.dhhmcpa.com 

Members 
American Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants 
Society of LA CPAs 



A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned fonctions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purposes described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a deficiency in intemal control, 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings that we consider to be a significant deficiency: 
2019-01. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Village's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we perfbnned tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's intemal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intemal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Duplantier, Hrapmann, Hogan & Mailer^ LLP 

New Orleans, Louisiana 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS: 

1. Type of Report Issued - Unmodified 

2. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

a. Material Weaknesses - No 

b. Significant Deficiencies - Yes (2019-01) 

3. Noncompliance Material to the Financial Statements — No 

4. Noncompliance with Laws and Regulations - No 

5. Management Letter Issued - No 

FINDINGS REOUIRED TO BE REPORTED UNDER GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS. 

Finding 2019-01: 

Criteria: Management is responsible for developing internal controls related to the preparation of 
financial statements as well as preparing financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Condition and Cause: As is common is small organizations, management has chosen to engage the 
auditor to prepare the notes to the Village's annual financial statements. This condition is intentional 
by management based upon the cost effectiveness of acquiring the ability to prepare the notes to the 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Consistent with this 
decision, internal controls over the preparation of the notes to the annual financial statements, in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, have not been established. Under generally 
accepted auditing standards, the condition represents a significant deficiency in internal controls. 
Statement on Auditing Standards (SAS) 115 requires that we report the above condition as a control 
deficiency. The SAS does not provide exceptions to reporting deficiencies that are adequately 
mitigated with nonaudit services rendered by the auditor or deficiencies for which the remedy would 
be cost prohibitive or othenvise impractical. 

Recommendation: As mentioned above, whether or not it would be cost effective to cure a control 
deficiency is not a factor in applying SAS 115's reporting requirements. Because prudent management 
requires that the potential benefit from an internal control must exceed its cost, it may not be practical 
to correct all the deficiencies an auditor reports under SAS 115. In this case we do not believe that 
curing the significant deficiency described above would be cost effective or practical and accordingly 
do not believe any corrective action is necessary. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

FINDINGS REOUIRED TO BE REPORTED UNDER GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS: (Continued) 

Finding 2019-01: (Continued) 

Management Response: In response to the finding, management feels that it is a prudent use of funds 
to engage the auditor to prepare the notes to the Village's annual financial statements. We therefore 
agree with the auditors' recommendation that no corrective action is necessary. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

FINDING 2018-1: 

Criteria: Management is responsible for developing internal controls related to the preparation of 
financial statements as well as preparing financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Condition and Cause: As is common is small organizations, management has chosen to engage the 
auditor to propose certain year-end adjusting entries and to prepare the Village's annual financial 
statements. This condition is intentional by management based upon the cost effectiveness of 
acquiring the ability to prepare financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Consistent with this decision, internal controls over the preparation of year-end adjusting 
entries and annual financial statements, complete with notes, in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, have not been established. Under generally accepted auditing standards, the 
condition represents a significant deficiency in internal controls. Statement on Auditing Standards 
(SAS) 115 requires that we report the above condition as a control deficiency. The SAS does not 
provide exceptions to reporting deficiencies that are adequately mitigated with nonaudit services 
rendered by the auditor or deficiencies for which the remedy would be cost prohibitive or otherwise 
impractical. 

Recommendation: As mentioned above, whether or not it would be cost effective to cure a control 
deficiency is not a factor in appl3dng SAS 115's reporting requirements. Because prudent management 
requires that the potential benefit from an internal control must exceed its cost, it may not be practical 
to correct all the deficiencies an auditor reports under SAS 115. In this case we do not believe that 
curing the significant deficiency described above would be cost elfective or practical and accordingly 
do not believe any coixective action is necessary. 

Status: Partially resolved - see comment 2019-01. The Village is now preparing its financial 
statements, but has chosen to engage the auditor to prepare the notes to the Village's annual financial 
statements. 

FINDING 2018-2: 

Criteria: Management is responsible for the accurate accounting and allocation of utility payments. 

Condition and Cause: For the year ended June 30, 2018, credit card pa3nnents for water, sewer, and 
garbage utility charges were deposited into the Water Fund operating account. The payments related to 
sewer and garbage charges, $30,519.50 and $11,727.51, respectively, should have been transferred to 
the cash accounts for those funds. These transfers were not made and as a result, the garbage fund 
incuiTed $66 in overdraft fees. 

Recommendation: We recommend the Village transfer these payments monthly to ensure each fund 
receives its allocable share of payments received. 

Status: This finding has been resolved in the current year. 
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VILLAGE OF FOLSOM, LOUISIANA 
STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

FINDING 2018-3: 

Criteria: Management is responsible for complying with the Local Government Budget Act. 

Condition and Cause: For the year ended June 30, 2018, total expenditures for the Sales Tax Fund 
exceeded budgeted expenditures by 34.9%. This was due to higher than anticipated payroll expenses 
compared to the original adopted budget and no amendment was adopted during the year. 

Recommendation: We recommend the Village monitor actual results compared to budgeted amounts 
and amend the budget when necessary to comply with the Local Government Budget Act. 

Status: This finding has been resolved in the current year. 
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